ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2011
8:01 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT
Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French
Senator Gary Stevens
MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BILL NO. 8
"An Act relating to questionnaires and surveys admnistered in
t he public schools.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 8

SHORT TITLE: STUDENT QUESTI ONNAI RES AND SURVEYS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/19/11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) EDC, HSS

02/ 16/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 16/ 11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 21/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 21/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 21/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 25/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

THOVAS OBERMEYER, St af f

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2011



Senat or Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 8 on behal f
of the sponsor.

M CHAEL KEROSKY, Supervi sor

Safe and Drug Free School s

Anchor age School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 8.

CARL ROSE, Lobbyi st

Associ ation of Al aska School Boards (AASB)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 8.

BRUCE JOHNSON, Executive Director

Al aska Associ ation of School Adm nistrators (AASA)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 8.

VENDY HAM LTON, representing herself
Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 8.

BECKY JUDD, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 8.

JUNE SOBOCI NSKI, Vice President

Communi ty Action

Uni t ed Way- Anchor age

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 8.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:01: 33 AM
COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stevens, French, Davis, and Co-Chair Meyer.

SB 8- STUDENT QUESTI ONNAI RES AND SURVEYS

8:02: 04 AM
CO- CHAI R MEYER announced t he consi deration of SB 8.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 25, 2011



SENATOR DAVI' S, sponsor of SB 8, said this bill has been around
for quite awhile. It is an inportant piece of |legislation
because there are nmany agencies that use the information that is
gathered from the [Youth Ri sk Behavior Survey]. SB 8 would nake
the survey nore accessible to students.

8:04:12 AM
THOVAS OBERMEYER, staff to Senator Bettye Davis, sponsor of SB
8, introduced hinself.

COCHAIR MEYER asked for confirmation that a 60 percent
participation rate was necessary for this survey.

MR. OBERMEYER replied yes. A 60 percent participation rate of
the entire state is required to qualify for being included in
the national statistics. This would allow Al aska to be conpared
to other states for youth risk behaviors. He stressed the
i nportance of the state neeting that |evel of participation.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if there are other states that do not
participate in this survey.

MR. OBERMEYER replied that he did not believe so.

SENATOR FRENCH said he had three questions. He asked what the
| evel of participation across the nation is and where Al aska
falls within this spectrum Next, he asked if, by going from a
passive to an active survey distribution, there is evidence of a
hi gher rate of return

SENATOR DAVIS replied that participation will increase if the
way the survey is admnistered changes. She said that prior to
t he previous change, which changed the survey to require active
parental consent, the participation rate was higher.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what year the state shifted to active
parental consent.

MR. OBERMEYER answer ed around 1999.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked what the consequences are for not getting a
60 percent participation rate back on the survey.

MR. OBERMEYER replied that the consequences are significant.

School districts will lack the information needed to help dea
with certain youth risk behaviors. The agencies that can best

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2011



address these issues and allocate its resources to correcting
ri sk behaviors need these statistics in order to get grants and
continue with its operations.

CO- CHAI R MEYER asked if these agencies help in educating parents
and students about the survey.

MR. OBERMEYER answered that the results and analysis from these
agencies are very useful and are nmade accessible to both parents
and school s.

CO CHAIR MEYER said that one argunent he has heard is that it
costs the school districts a lot of noney to inform parents
about these surveys. He asked, since many agencies benefit from
this information, whether the agencies could help the school
districts in getting participation.

SENATOR DAVIS replied that these agencies are often non-profit
organi zations that don't have a lot of noney. Sone school
districts do not have any trouble getting students to
participate in this survey, others do. The goal of the bill is
to make this survey equally available in all districts.

COCHAIR MEYER said in the past there has been a Ilot of
resistance in forcing parents to participate.

SENATOR DAVI S explained that this bill does not force parents to
participate or force children to take the survey. She added that
on the day of the survey, a student could refuse to take it.

CO-CHAIR MEYER asked for confirmation that this bill would
require parents to opt out.

SENATOR DAVIS replied that the student can also opt out of the
survey.

MR. OBERMEYER said that if a parent does not want their child to
take the survey they can notify the school in witing. They are
also given a nunber of notifications before the survey is
adm ni stered. Al so, on the day of the survey, students are told
they do not have to take the survey or answer questions they
m ght find objectionable. He added that the results of this
survey have been used for years and there is no other neans for
getting this kind of information.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2011



CO- CHAIR MEYER said that this information hel ps significantly.
He asked for confirmation that even if the parent has not opted
out, the student can still do so at any tine.

MR. OBERMEYER replied yes.

8:13: 55 AM

M CHAEL KEROSKY, Supervisor, Safe and Drug Free Schools,
Anchorage School District, stated support for SB 8. He said he
has coordinated the Youth Ri sk Behavior Survey (YRBS) for the
| ast 15 years in Anchorage. Because of the size of the Anchorage
School District (ASD) student population it is incunbent that
the district finds effective ways for students to participate
and take this survey. He explained that ASD nust successfully
conplete the YRBS in order for Alaska to get a valid sanple.

He said he would like to focus on the process of gathering
perm ssion forms. He explained that, in his understanding, there
are only two or three other states that require active parenta
consent in order to admnister this survey. O those states,
Alaska is the only one that has been able to successfully
conplete the YRBS. The YRBS is admi nistered every two years. In
the fall of the year it wll be admnistered, participation
consent forns are distributed to students' parents. The survey
is adm nistered during second-period classes, and four or five
cl asses from each high school are selected at randomto take the
survey. About 1,200 students are surveyed in the district, which
is statistically a good representative sanple of its 13,000
students. After the second-period classes have been selected the
district goes through the list of parents that have said "yes"
or "no" to the survey. The parents that have not replied to the
letter of permssion becone the district's "target audience.”
These parents are sent another letter which asks for perm ssion
to distribute the survey to their child and includes information
on the survey. The Iletter also includes a self-addressed
envel ope with a stanp on it.

8:19: 56 AM

MR. KEROSKY said that this year about half of the students'
parents, or about 600, had not responded to the letter of
perm ssion. He explained that ASD receives a relatively |ow
response rate when sonething is requested by mail. Follow ng the
second letter of perm ssion, only 10 percent of parents repli ed.

At this point students and school coordinators are given

incentives to "hound" parents about getting the form back to the
school. The arrangenent is that those selected classes wll

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2011



receive a pizza party if they get 100 percent of the fornms
returned. Coordinators will often receive a $100 bonus as well
He reiterated that it does not matter what the form says, the
district just wants to get the form About 80 percent of these
returned fornms have been marked "yes." He explained that this
has been the nost effective way of getting these forns returned.

The entire system of trying to get a piece of paper back from
parents is very difficult. He explained that ASD spends about
$30, 000 every year the survey is distributed in order to get
t hese permi ssion slips back. Wth passive consent there would be
no need for this elaborate infrastructure that has been created
and it would be nmuch cheaper to distribute the survey.

8:25:14 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if he has used e-mail in order to send
perm ssion slips and rem nders.

MR. KERCSKY replied that ASD is not wusing electronic nethods
because it is unsure whether it would be a legal form of
receiving permssions. He explained that even calling parents
and asking themto return the form does not worKk.

SENATOR STEVENS asked, in his experience, what the reasons are
behi nd the percentage of parents who say no to this survey.

MR. KERCSKY answered that he isn't sure. He guessed that it was
because sone parents do not want their children thinking about
this material. Suicide has been the nobst frequently addressed
concern.

8:28:17 AM

CARL ROSE, Lobbyist, Association of Al aska School Boards (AASB)
stated support for SB 8. He said he wanted to give the commttee
an exanple of how the data from the survey can be used and the
positive inpact it can have. He turned to the 2010 Al aska
Initiative for Community Engagenent AASB progress report. He
said it is inportant to | ook beyond the problens that face young
people and find out what makes them successful. This is done
nost successfully by creating healthy relationships with adults,
which is a shared responsibility. In order to do this it is
inportant to find out what the current status of youth is, and
where it mght be headed. This is done through the collection of
dat a.

He turned to page 3 of the report, which included 40 behaviora
devel opnental assets, which encourage positive decision nmaking

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2011



in youth. He explained that many of Alaska's commnities and
famlies posses a nunber of these assets. However, data has
shown that the average student has about 18 of the 40 assets
readily available. He stressed that this is a strength-based
effort, which focuses on healthy behavior and good decisions,
not deficits.

Page 8 explained how change 1is neasured in conmmunities,
organi zations and schools. He said the evaluation results show
hi gher proficiency rates in reading, witing and math and fewer
ri sk behaviors occur in positive school environnments. He said
that policy nmakers, like this body, expect results and want
research based prograns for measuring change. This takes data.

MR. ROSE said AASB's mission is to advocate for youth. However
in order to do this the board has to know what students are
thinking. He said that "the very best and the very worst of our
society are in our schools.” The results of the YRBS help
identify what some of the risk behaviors for youth are and what
sone of the strength based renedi es can be.

8:37: 08 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said sonetinmes a survey can inprove a behavior
by making an individual realize that they are not doing what
they would like to do. He asked if there is anything that he
m ght add to this.

MR. ROSE answered yes, there is a correlation. He said it is
i mportant to understand what Al aska's youth are doing and what
alternatives can be offered. He explained that from AASB s vi ew,
nost kids appreciate when they are treated |like an adult, are
asked serious questions, and are offered real options. It is
better to offer youth options for what they can do, rather than
what they can't do.

SENATOR STEVENS noted that this is a counter to the thought that
the ideas brought up by the survey wll lead to destructive
behavi or.

MR. ROSE said these issues are pervasive throughout society. He
reiterated that it is inportant to focus on what the strength
based opportunities are for children.

8:41: 20 AM

BRUCE JOHNSON, Executive Director, Al aska Association of Schoo
Adm ni strators (AASA), stated support for SB 8. He said the YRBS
survey is one way AASA believes it can secure good data. This

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2011



data is inportant as school districts attenpt to nake decisions
about prograns, counseling, and how to interact with kids. He
explained that the nore data the better, so that prograns are
not offered out of ignorance. He said that the nenbers he
represents at AASA would like to see nore surveys filled out in
a way that is easy but still protects the rights of parents. He
said this bill has done a nice job in noving in that direction.

SENATOR STEVENS said that the cost for the Anchorage School
District was about $30,000. He asked M. Johnson what the
estimated statew de cost of the current systemis.

MR. JOHNSON replied that he did not have that information. He
said that many school districts do not do anything about the
survey because it is too challenging and costly to get responses
back from parents. This occurs especially in some of the smaller
districts. The data would be nmuch nore robust if they could
adm ni ster this survey in another way.

8.45: 07 AM

VENDY HAM LTON, representing herself, stated support for SB 8.
She noted that she has been involved with social and health
i ssues as a program nmanager for the Tobacco program and worked
as a chem cal dependency counselor. She said it is a trenendous
cost, both in dollars and man power, to admnister this survey.
She explained that even after expending all of this nman power
and dollars the 60 percent participation rate is still not
reached. She said CDC [Centers for Disease Control] did research
a few years ago in different states and found out that the
bi ggest reason parents did not return this permssion formis
because they lost the formor did not care. Those parents who do
not want their children to take the survey will respond.

CO CHAIR MEYER agreed that students bring a |ot of paper hone
from school. He suggested that sending notifications out
el ectronically could help.

8:47:39 AM

BECKY JUDD, representing herself, stated support for SB 8. She
said she has worked with youth organizations and sone state
agencies in the use of the YRBS. Youth Organi zations often need
to look at, plan, and evaluate its services. It is inportant to
know whet her these organi zations and prograns are effective. The
YRBS is one of the tools that have been used for evaluation and
the data gathered fromthis survey is required by state agencies
and national organizations in order to nmake a case for funding
needs. She reiterated that the parents who have the nost

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 25, 2011



objections to the survey are the ones that are nobst involved in
their child s lives to begin wth.

8: 50: 50 AM

JUNE SOBOCI NSKI, Vice President, Comrunity Action, United Way-
Anchor age, stated support for SB 8. She said that the Comrunity
Action Program works wth the comunity to achieve better
results. She explained that in order to do this it raises
private dollars to invest in prograns using evidence-based
practices that are accountable for results. The program also
attracts public funding in order to do this sane kind of work.
The data fromthe YRBS is used to create a gage on the need of
an organi zation in order to attract inportant funds.

She explained that United Way of Anchorage, as a funder,
distributes mllions of dollars each year. This noney is
directed to non-profits in the context of community plans wth
specific goals and indicators to track progress. She explained
that United Way wants to see substance abuse use go down, but
it's not possible to know whether this is happening unless it
has the results fromthe YRBS.

She noted that United Way-Al aska has seen success. From 2005-
2009 the current alcohol wuse has gone down by 6 percentage
poi nts and binge drinking was reduced by 5 percentage points in
Anchorage. This is the type of data that the YRBS can give
organi zations in order to becone nore accountable in how it use
its resources. This bill wll enable United Way-Al aska to get
valid and reliable data.

8:55:28 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER cl osed public testinony.

He said that the survey information in the document packet has
been very hel pful. He added that there is no way for |egislators
to know if a bill is effective without the use of surveys as
well. He said he would like to discuss the survey itself at the
foll ow ng commttee neeting.

SENATOR DAVIS reiterated that this bill has been around for a
whil e and she has brought it up again because she recogni zes the
i nportance of changing the way the survey is admnistered. SB 8
does not have any accountability for the survey questions
adm nistered; this is done by CDC. She stressed that this bil
is not neant to denmean parents and encouraged the conmttee to
pass it.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- February 25, 2011



CO- CHAI R MEYER announced he would hold SB 8 in comm tt ee.

9:00: 42 AM
There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee

Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 9:00 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2011



